
Argyll and Bute Council
Comhairle Earra-Ghàidheal Agus Bhòid

Customer  Services
Executive Director:  Douglas Hendry

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT
Tel:  01546 602127  Fax:  01546 604435

DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD
5 December 2016

NOTICE OF MEETING

A meeting of the SHORT LIFE WORKING GROUP ON POLITICAL MANAGEMENT 
ARRANGEMENTS will be held in the COMMITTEE ROOM 1, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD on 
MONDAY, 12 DECEMBER 2016 at 2:00 PM, which you are requested to attend.

Douglas Hendry
Executive Director of Customer Services

BUSINESS

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY) 

3. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 2)
Minutes of Short Life Working Group on Political Management Arrangements held on 
15 November 2016

4. POLITICAL MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS (Pages 3 - 16)
Report by Executive Director of Customer Services

5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND LOCALISM 
Report by Executive Director of Customer Services (to follow)

SHORT LIFE WORKING GROUP ON POLITICAL MANAGEMENT 
ARRANGEMENTS

Councillor Rory Colville Councillor Robin Currie
Councillor Anne Horn Councillor Roderick McCuish
Councillor Aileen Morton Councillor Ellen Morton
Councillor James Robb Councillor Elaine Robertson
Councillor Len Scoullar Councillor Sandy Taylor
Councillor Richard Trail Councillor Dick Walsh (Chair)



Contact: Sandra McGlynn Tel: 01546 604401



MINUTES of MEETING of SHORT LIFE WORKING GROUP ON POLITICAL MANAGEMENT 
ARRANGEMENTS held in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD 

on TUESDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2016 

Present: Councillor Dick Walsh (Chair)

Councillor Anne Horn
Councillor Roderick McCuish
Councillor Ellen Morton
Councillor Elaine Robertson

Councillor Len Scoullar
Councillor Sandy Taylor
Councillor Richard Trail

Attending: Cleland Sneddon, Chief Executive
Douglas Hendry, Executive Director – Customer Services
Charles Reppke, Head of Governance and Law
Shirley MacLeod, Area Governance Manager
Graeme Forrester, Area Committee Manager
Shona Barton, Area Committee Manager

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Rory Colville, Robin Currie 
and Aileen Morton.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest intimated.

3. MINUTES 
The Minutes of the Meeting of the Short Life Working Group on Political 
Management Arrangements held on 24 October 2016 were approved as a correct 
record.

The Head of Governance and Law advised that Councillor Robb had pointed out that 
during the discussion at the previous meeting he did not express agreement that the 
option to take all decisions at the full Council meetings was not fit for purpose.  The 
Working Group noted that the minute reflected the general discussion and the 
summary provided by Councillor Walsh, with reference to previous views expressed 
by Audit Scotland, at the conclusion of the meeting and was not a substantive 
decision.

4. POLITICAL MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS 
The Short Life Working Group gave consideration to a report which provided them 
with information they had requested at the previous meeting held on 24 October 
2016.

Further information was provided on a range of options in respect of Committee 
Structures including Area Committees, the Scheme of Delegation, the possibilities of 
combining the Audit and the Performance Review and Scrutiny Committee and items 
on an agenda purely for noting.

Discussion took place on the following points:-



 The number of items which are referred on to another Committee for decision
 Current delegations to the Service Committees and the options for 

streamlining decision making
 Reports for noting and options for more manageable agendas
 Changes required to the Constitution
 Localism – what will this look like and how can it be achieved?
 The options for the Scrutiny and Audit functions
 Ensuring inclusion of all Elected Members in decision making

Decision

The Short Life Working Group requested that officers draft a report for the next 
meeting, to include:-

(1) further information on the different decision making models, giving an 
indication on quality by comparing efficiency and the cost of delivery for each 
model;

(2) options for strengthening referral processes, and

(3) ideas for improving agenda management.

 (Reference:  Report by Executive Director – Customer Services dated 8 November 
2016, submitted)



ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL Short Life Working Group on Political 
Management Arrangements

CUSTOMER SERVICES 12 December 2016

SLWG – POLITICAL MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 At the meeting of the Short Life Working Group (SLWG) held on 15th 
November 2016, Members asked that officers draft a report for the next 
meeting to include:

 Further information on the different decision making models, giving an 
indication on quality by comparing efficiency and the cost of delivery for 
each model.

 Options for strengthening referral processes.

 Ideas for improving agenda management.

1.2 Members are asked to consider the information provided.



ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL Short Life Working Group on Political 
Management Arrangements

CUSTOMER SERVICES 12 December 2016

SLWG – POLITICAL MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS

2.0 INTRODUCTION

2.1 This report provides Members of the SLWG with the information that they 
requested at the meeting held on 15th November 2016.
 

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 Members are asked to consider the information provided.

4.0 DETAIL

4.1 At the meeting of the SLWG on 15th November, Members asked officers to 
provide information on a number of areas.

4.2 Quality of Decision Making Models. 

4.2.1 The quality of potential decision making models can be considered in terms of 
both efficiency and the cost of delivery of the model. In progressing this, officers 
have considered statistics for the current traditional committee structure for a) 
how often decisions go against officers recommendations, b) how often referrals 
go up to another committee and the decision is changed, c) how many times 
there are divisions where officers recommendations are not agreed, and d) how 
many successful challenges there have been to committee decisions (judicial 
reviews etc.)

No of reports 
where officer 
recommendation 
is not agreed

No of 
reports 
referred up 
to another 
committee 
and 
decision is 
changed

No of reports 
where there is 
division of 
members and 
officer 
recommendation 
is not agreed

No of 
successful 
challenges 
to 
committee 
decisions

EDI 1 0 0 0
Community 
Services

2 0 0 0

Policy & 
Resources

0 0 0 0



 Given that the different decision making models being considered by the SLWG 
relates at this time only to the central committee structure no analysis of 
decisions made by Area Committees has been carried out.

4.2.2 The second  variable which should be considered in terms of the quality of 
decision making models relates to cost, and this can really only be measured by 
the frequency/number of meetings linked to the cost of delivery of the service. A 
comparison is provided below between the current political management 
framework and the options which are currently under consideration.  Diagrams 
showing the detail of each model are attached as Appendices 1 – 3. 

Committee model Central meetings Area meetings Total
Current Traditional 
model

47 Ordinary 
meetings – not 
including Special or 
Hearings

44 Area 
Committees
16 Area CPG 
meetings

107

Updated Traditional 
model

39 Ordinary 
meetings

Area 
Committees to 
be confirmed
Area CPG 
meetings to be 
confirmed

39 plus 
Area to be 
confirmed

Cabinet/Executive 
Model

43 Ordinary 
meetings

Area 
Committees to 
be confirmed
Area CPG 
meetings to be 
confirmed

43 plus 
Area to be 
confirmed

In the current political management framework there are 107 meeting cycles to 
be supported /administered each year (47 central meetings and 60 at the areas 
– this includes the current support for Area Community Planning).  The staff 
resource available to cover this number of meetings is 14.9 full time equivalent. 
No account has been made of extra or special meetings of committees, or of the 
number of LRBs and hearings etc. which derive from the PPSL committee since 
these are difficult to predict and quantify on a regular basis, and since this is 
likely to continue to be the case in whatever the decision making process is in 
the new council.  Once Governance and Law completes its service choices 
process it is likely that the staff resource available to support committee 
processes will reduce by 5.6 fte to 9.3 full time equivalents, which is a 38% 
reduction. The decision making model adopted by the new council will have to 
be capable of being supported by this significantly reduced service resource.

4.2.3 Members discussed the need for all members of the council to have the 
opportunity to be included in decision making processes at all levels, and points 
were made about previous experiences whereby if an elected member was not 
involved with the work of the executive committee their opportunity to take part 
in strategic discussion and decision making was very limited. Members further 



noted that generally the current traditional committee model offers wider 
opportunity for such strategic work for all members given the membership of EDI 
and Community Services each being 16 members. 

4.2.4 In an effort to resolve such concerns it is suggested that in the event of the 
SLWG recommending an executive/cabinet type model, the structure would 
then include an opposition led scrutiny committee which would hold the 
executive/cabinet to account over their decisions. 

4.3 Strengthening Referral Processes.

4.3.1 Members were of the view that the current referral process should be 
strengthened to ensure that whenever possible decisions are made at the first 
committee at which a report is considered, and that the need for onward referral 
is reduced. Two options for change to the Scheme of Delegation which can be 
considered include the potential that there would be no need for referral of 
decisions made by any committee to a second committee if the first committee 
is unanimous in their agreement of an officers recommendation in a report on a 
matter within the Terms of Reference for that committee. Additionally, a 
mechanism can be built into the Constitution to provide that if a committee 
makes a decision which is unanimous but is not in agreement with the 
recommendation of an officer  that decision could be made without referral to a 
further committee, subject to clarity that there are no significant  implications for 
service delivery, policy or budget; if there were any such implications the report 
would need to come back for further consideration, and ultimately any matter in 
this category is likely to have to be referred upwards, potentially to full council.

4.3.2 In respect of the statistical information provided at 4.2.1 above, if the suggested 
changes to the referral process were implemented   the numbers of reports 
which would have been referred to another committee would have been as 
follows:

No of reports 
referred 
onwards in 
current 
process

No of 
report’s 
which would 
have been 
agreed 
without need 
for referral

No of reports 
with knock on 
implications 
which would 
have required 
further 
consideration 

No of reports 
which would 
have required 
referral even if 
changes 
made to 
Constitution

EDI (10/4/14 
– 10/11/16)

16 13 3 3

Community  
Services 
(8/5/14 – 
21/11/16)

11 9 2 2

Policy and 
Resources

29 16 9 9



4.4 Improving Agenda Management. 

4.4.1 Members were keen to consider options for managing agendas and ensuring 
efficient decision making at meetings.  Committee reports can be for the 
purpose of providing information upon which decision is required; for the 
purpose of providing information to support members exercise their scrutiny role 
and assess progress on strategic issues, for the purpose of sharing information 
which is simply for information/noting, or for the purpose of considering 
consultations to which a committee may wish to make a response. 

4.4.2 The report considered by the SLWG in November included detail on the number 
of reports which have been tabled at service committees for noting, which is as 
follows:

Committee No of Reports 
(excl minutes, 
presentations & 
workplan)

Outcome - for Noting

EDI 37 18
Community Services 42 21

Approximately 50% of reports considered by these service committees are for 
noting and do not require a decision to be made by members, however closer 
analysis has established that a number of these reports were presented not 
simply for the purpose of providing information but to support members exercise 
their scrutiny role and assess progress on strategic issues.

4.4.3  Members were keen to consider agenda management changes to ensure that 
agendas, and meetings, are focused and effective and concentrate on business 
which requires to be concluded, thereby ensuring that there is clarity around 
decision making processes at all times by all committees. Options for such 
proactive agenda management include having substantive items which require 
decisions to be made as the first items for consideration at all meetings. 
Agendas would then move on to consider items for noting where the information 
relates to strategic issues or matters over which the committee has a scrutiny 
role and to consider any consultation process information within the terms of 
reference of the committee. Thereafter items which are about sharing of relevant 
information would be included on agendas as one item, with members able to 
contact relevant officers to obtain further information if required, but the aim 
would be to discourage discussion of these items at committee/council 
meetings. This would ensure that elected members are kept abreast of current 
matters without the need for discussion on items which are purely for 
information.  It is suggested that the process of considering matters which 
contain exempt or private information which must be dealt with after the 
exclusion of press and public would continue to be dealt with  after all other 
agendas items have been concluded.



4.4.4 In respect of ensuring focused agendas and meetings members were keen to 
explore a process whereby officers would not routinely be expected to attend 
committee meetings to speak to the terms of their submitted reports, on the 
basis that all reports are submitted for inclusion and discussions at pre agenda 
process, and that finalised reports for committees are available and published 
with committee meeting packs.  Members’ expressed the opinion that such 
discipline should be the absolute norm, thereby providing members with well-
crafted reports with clear recommendations in good time to enable members to 
read and digest information, and have the opportunity if required to discuss 
details with report authors in advance of discussion at committee. If this model 
were adopted it would be for the policy lead to present the report by the officer 
and make whatever motion in respect thereof .This approach would cut down 
the commitment for officers to attend two meetings [pre agenda and meeting] for 
the same agenda items .There would also be a reduction in time for meetings as 
questions to officers would not be a part of each item.

5.0 CONCLUSION

5.1 This report outlines a range of considerations to be factored into the 
determination of a preferred operating model for future political management 
arrangements. Critical to the success of any future model will be the provision of 
clear and effective governance structures. The model should also take account 
of the available staff resources to support such a model, and have regard to the 
number of meetings that members might then be expected to participate in 
annually.

6.0 IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Policy – none at this stage.

6.2 Financial - none at present, but may be financial implications dependent 
on the outcome of the review.

6.3 Legal – none at this stage.

6.4 HR – none at present, but may have HR implications dependent on the 
outcome of the review.

6.5 Equalities - none

6.6 Risk - 

6.7 Customer Service - none



Douglas Hendry
Executive Director of Customer Services
5th December 2016

                                                
For further information contact: Charles Reppke, Head of Governance and Law 
(01546) 604192

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Current Committee Structure
Appendix 2 – Traditional Committee Structure
Appendix 3 – Executive/Cabinet Committee Structure





Current Committee Structure

Council

6 meetings per year

Policy and Resources

6 meetings per year

Community Services

4 meetings per year 

EDI

4 meetings per year

Harbour Board

4 meetings per year

PPSL

11 meetings per year

4 Area Committees

11 meetings per year

(44 in total)

PRS Committee 

4 meetings per year

Audit Committee

4 meetings per year 

EJCC

2 meetings per year

LNCT

2 meetings per year

4 Area Community Planning 
Groups

4 meetings per year

(16 in total)





Traditional Committee Structure

Council

4 meetings per year

Policy and Resources

4 meetings per year

Community Services

4 meetings per year 

EDI

4 meetings per year

Harbour Board

4 meetings per year

PPSL

11 meetings per year

Area Committee

TBC

Scrutiny Committee

4 meetings per year

EJCC

2 meetings per year

LNCT

2 meetings per year

Ward Forums?

Audit Committee

4 meetings per year





Executive/Cabinet Model

Executive

Every 6 weeks

PPSL

11 meetings per year

Council

4 meetings per year

Scrutiny Committee

(Opposition led)

Every 6 weeks

Area Committees

TBC

Harbour Board

4 meetings per year

Ward Forums?

Audit Committee

4 meetings per year

EJCC

2 meetings per year

LNCT

2 meetings per year




	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4 POLITICAL MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS
	Appendix 1 - Current Structure
	Appendix 2 - Traditional Committee Structure
	Appendix 3 - Executive Cabinet model


